
 

 
 

NELSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Meeting Agenda: August 26th, 2020 
General District Courtroom, 3rd Floor, Nelson County Courthouse, Lovingston 

 
 
− 7:00 – Meeting Convenes / Call to Order 
 
− Review of meeting minutes: July 22nd, 2020 
 
− Public Hearings  
 

− 1. Rezoning #2020-01 –  R-1 to A-1  
 

− 2.  Special Use Permit #2020-04 –  Extended Stay Campground 
 

− 3. Special Use Permit #2020-05 –  Retail Store 
 

 
− Other Business 
 
− Board of Supervisors Report 
 
− Adjournment  
   
− Next Meeting: TBD   

 

NOTICE: In alignment with current COVID-19 guidelines, and to guard the health and safety of all meeting 
attendees, social distancing and the wearing of face masks will be required in the courtroom. If you do not 
have a mask, one will be provided for you. Should current guidance change prior to the date of the meeting, 
the guidelines in place at the time will be adhered to.  

If you are not able to attend the meeting due to COVID-19 precautions or restrictions, comments may be 
submitted (1) electronically, or (2) in writing, and will be accepted until 12:00 pm on August 26th, 2020.  

(1) Electronically: ehjulstrom@nelsoncounty.org or dbishop@nelsoncounty.org  
(2) In Writing: Dept. of Planning & Zoning, P.O. Box 558, Lovingston, VA 22949 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 
 

NELSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 

July 22, 2020 
 
 

Present:  Chair Mark Stapleton and Commissioners Mary Kathryn Allen, Ernie Reed, 
Chuck Amante, and Phil Proulx. Absent: Mike Harman 

Staff Present: Dylan Bishop, Director and Emily Hjulstrom, Secretary 

 

Call to Order:  Chair Stapleton called the meeting to order at 7:00 P. M. in the 
General District Courtroom, County Courthouse, Lovingston. 

 

Review of the minutes January 22nd, 2020 

Ms. Proulx made a motion to approve the minutes from January 22nd. Ms. Allen 
seconded the motion. The motion passed with a vote of 4-0 with one abstaining. 

Yes: 

Mark Stapleton 

Phil Proulx  

Chuck Amante 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

 

Abstain: 

Ernie Reed 

 

Ms. Bishop noted that the Planning and Zoning office has been closed to the public and remains 
closed at this time. She added that County Administration has been working on a plan for the office 
to open back up, but they aren’t sure when that will happen yet. She explained that otherwise the 
office has been able to maintain normal operations and staff is available to the public via phone and 
email. She also congratulated Mary Kathryn Allen and Mike Harman for being reappointed to the 
Planning Commission. 

 

Public Hearings 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

  
 
Communication Tower #2020-01 – Class C – 7:05 pm  
 
Ms. Bishop presented the following information: 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

Ms. Lori Schweller, an attorney with Williams Mullen, gave the following presentation: 
Presentation 
 
Ms. Schweller showed the three closest existing Verizon sites and explained that they are all about 2.5 
miles from the proposed site. She noted that the closest colocation possibilities are too close to existing 
colocations. She noted that almost 60% of Americans no longer have a landline. She also noted that a 
citizen in Amherst had noted that 85% of emergency calls in Amherst are made from a wireless device. 
She noted that the engineer would certify that if the tower were to fail it would fall within the property 
line.  
 
Chair Stapleton opened the public hearing at 7:17 PM.  
 
Lynette Miles lives at 634 Variety Mills Rd, she asked how far the tower would be from her house. Ms. 
Schweller noted that the tower would be 437 feet from her house. Ms. Miles asked if it would be safe for 
the neighborhood and if it would make noise. She then explained that she was concerned about 
property values and asked where the property access would be.  
 
Ms. Schweller explained that there would be no noise other than the generator that would run 
occasionally for testing purposes or if the electricity goes out. She noted that it is very quiet and she 
wouldn’t expect Ms. Miles to be able to hear it. She noted that there would be no lights on the tower at 
all. She explained that it is extremely rare for a monopole to fail and that an engineer evaluates it under 
many conditions. She added that the FCC regulates wireless facilities and that in the 90’s they 
developed a set of standards that have been adopted to ensure public safety. She noted that these 
facilities have hundreds to thousands of times less radio emission than what is allowed by the FCC.  
 
Chair Stapleton asked how often someone would be visiting the site. Ms. Schweller noted that about 
twice a month a technician will visit the site to check on things and that construction takes about 6 
weeks. Ms. Allen asked if the other arrays are built in advance. Ms. Schweller noted they only add an 
additional array when they have an agreement with another company in place. Ms. Allen asked why it 
needed to be 195’ tall. Ms. Schweller noted that this area has very poor coverage and this is needed to 
cover as much area as possible. Mr. Reed noted that the graveyard is 123’ feet from the tower, he asked 
if it was in the fall zone. Ms. Schweller noted that it would not be. Ms. Bishop noted that a letter from 
an engineer showing that it would fall within 123’ would be adequate.  
 
Ms. Miles noted that the radiation can be harmful. Chair Stapleton explained that apparently there 
would be no impact at her house from the radiation. Ms. Schweller encouraged everyone to check 
reliable sites like the FCC or WHO for information on towers. She noted that to her knowledge there is 
no study that shows these facilities cause any damage. She noted that a baby monitor in your house 
would be far more radiation than this tower. She noted that this would provide all services that Verizon 
provides except for 5G.  
 
Afread Weaver lives at 810 Variety Mills Rd. He noted that he is also concerned about the radiation. He 
wanted to know how much extra service they are going to get. He added that he is about ¼ mile from 
the proposed tower site. Ms. Schweller noted that he would certainly get service from the tower if he 
uses Verizon.  



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

Ms. Hjulstrom then read the following comments from Michael Hodgson: 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 
Chair Stapleton closed the public hearing at 7:37 PM. 
 
Ms. Allen noted that the county needs the coverage and that she wishes she had this coverage where she 
lives. Mr. Reed noted that the BOS has prioritized getting service to underserved areas and that this 
would fit that goal. Mr. Amante noted that he didn’t have an objection to this particular tower but that 
when the Planning Commission reviews the Comprehensive Plan they should take rising density into 
account.  
 
Ms. Allen made a motion to recommend to approval of Class C tower #2020-01 Verizon 
to include the recommendations of the tower should be constructed according to the 
final approved site plan, dated February 24, 2020. Also, to include the following 
modifications and conditions:  
 

• The tower shall be constructed according to the final approved site plan.  
• Allowed modification for height requirement of 195 feet, with 4-foot lightning rod.  
• Allowed modification for fall area setback of 120 feet.  
• Allowed modification for six arrays within each antenna.  

  
 
Mr. Amante seconded the motion.  
 
Yes: 

Mark Stapleton 

Phil Proulx  

Chuck Amante 

Ernie Reed 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

 
 
 
Rezoning #2020-01 – R-1 to A-1 – 7:20 pm  
 
Ms. Bishop presented the following information: 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 
Ms. Allen asked what the existing nearby commercially zoned parcel was. Ms. Proulx noted that the 
parcel has not been used as industrial in 44 years.  
 
Ms. Bishop also noted that the additional parking is not required.  
 
Ms. Bishop explained that typically rezoning from R-1 to A-1 is a downzoning but that in Nelson County 
the minimum lot size is the same for both zones. She noted that it could be argued that A-1 has higher 
intensity uses than R-1 would allow. She noted that staff is considering this a lateral or upzoning.  
 
Daniel and Terri Tatarka live at 279 Avon Rd. Mr. Tatarka stated that they have been there for 5 years 
operating as a Bed and Breakfast. He explained that they initially wanted to be a home brewery but 
state regulations were changed. He noted that they came to the board and they allowed them to have a 
production brewery for their guests. He stated that now they would like to allow members of the public 
in and incorporate produce from their property into the beer.  
 
Chair Stapleton opened the public hearing at 7:57 PM 
 
Ms. Hjulstrom then read the following public comment from those that were not able to attend: 
 
 

 
 
Ms. Tatarka noted that when they purchased the property they installed a new septic system for the bed 
and breakfast that accommodates 25 People. She noted there are 5 rooms in the Bed and Breakfast 
(serving 10 people in total) and that they are only open weekend. She added that the current system 
already has the capacity for the increase in use that they are proposing.  
 
Chair Stapleton closed the public hearing at 8:00 PM.  
 
Ms. Proulx noted that this is a rezoning and that the Planning Commission has no control after it is 
rezoned because they can do anything by-right. She noted that in her opinion it is a higher intensity use 
that they are asking for. She explained that if the Tatarkas were to sell the property then any agriculture 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

use would be able to go there by right. She noted that there are Agricultural properties around but that 
they are residential in use. She added that she thinks that their proposal is too large for the property 
that they have. She noted that the adjoining neighbors might not be here because they were notified 
that the property was being rezoned but not why. She stated that she also sees this as spot zoning and 
worries about the welfare of the whole community.  
 
Ms Allen noted that the entrance would be right across from the church and that they planned to use 
the church for overflow parking when needed. Ms. Proulx noted that this means that people would be 
walking back and forth across the road. 
 
Mr. Amante stated that when he read the application, it sounded like they wanted to do 10-gallon 
batches only to guests of the Bed and Breakfast. Ms. Allen explained that that was what they currently 
had but they would like to be open to the public. Mr. Amante asked if it could be done as a Special Use 
Permit. Ms. Bishop noted that it had to be rezoned because there is no Special Use Permit in residential 
(R-1) that allows it.  
 
Ms. Bishop noted that the county can impose conditions on the rezoning. Mr. Amante noted that from 
everything he has heard they have a good reputation in the neighborhood. He added that Ms. Proulx 
had a good point that once it is rezoned you cannot take it back. Ms. Allen noted that they could ask the 
applicants to proffer to remove the uses they do not want to be allowed. Ms. Proulx noted that the other 
commercial property nearby was the Afton Service Center.  
 
 
Ms. Proulx questioned if they could have any proffers that related to how the brewery is run. Ms. 
Bishop noted that one of the things that the applicants proffered was the operation hours of the 
property to cut off at 7 PM. She added that she thinks it could be allowed because it relates to the 
physical property. 
 
Mr. Amante made a motion to postpone discussion of Rezoning 2020-01 R-1 to A-1 until 
the next meeting on August 26th, 2020. Ms. Proulx seconded the motion. 
 
Yes: 

Mark Stapleton 

Phil Proulx  

Chuck Amante 

Ernie Reed 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

 
 
 
Special Use Permit #2020-01 – Extended Stay Campground – 7:35 pm 
 
Ms. Bishop presented the following information: 
 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 
Ms. Johnston noted that she is applying for the Special Use Permit to be able to comply. She added that 
she served as a vice chair on a Planning Commission for many years and just wants to make sure she is 
doing the right thing. She noted that her and her husband’s goal was to put a tiny home there. She 
explained that they would like to visit there as a getaway and would like to be able to rent it to others 
when they are not there.  
 
Ms. Allen asked if you could see into the property from the road. Ms. Johnston noted that you would 
not be able to see the travel trailer.  
 
Chair Stapleton opened the public hearing at 8:22 PM.  
 
Donna Hogston lives at 4365 Tye River Rd. She noted that she is concerned with the renting aspect of 
the application. She asked if it was going to be a camper. Ms. Johnston noted that it is 30’ long and 10’ 
wide and in the style of a cabin home. She noted that her intention is to use it as their own getaway but 
also to be able to rent it as an Air BNB on occasion. Ms. Hogston noted that she wants to give the 
benefit of the doubt and that she has no issue with the proposed use.  
  
Judy & Barry Tucker live in Madison Heights. They own the property next to the property in question. 
They are confused why this is being called a campground. Ms. Bishop explained that it is logistical 
because of the definitions in the zoning ordinance. She noted that they will have the condition that they 
only are allowed one camper. Ms. Tucker asked if it would be on well and septic. Ms. Johnston 
confirmed that it would be. Mr. and Ms. Tucker noted that this application would be ok with them.  
 
Chair Stapleton closed the public hearing at 8:29 PM.  
 
Ms. Proulx asked who would be on site checking in on the campground. Ms. Johnston noted that they 
would have security cameras on the property and that her mom lives in Lynchburg and she herself lives 
part time in Lynchburg.  
 
Ms. Allen made a motion to recommend approval of SUP #2020-01 Campground with the 
condition it is limited to one campsite as shown on the site plan.  
Ms. Proulx seconded the motion. 
 
Yes: 

Mark Stapleton 

Phil Proulx  

Chuck Amante 

Ernie Reed 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

 
 
Special Use Permit #2020-02 – Artist Community – 7:50 pm 
 
Ms. Bishop presented the following information: 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 
John Meany lives at 223 Fox Horn Lane in Charlottesville, VA. He noted that the applicants were 
unable to be there due to a family health issue and that he is the landscape architect for the project. He 
noted that his clients are willing to accept the recommendations from the Planning Commission. He 
explained that there is a gravel road to their neighborhood and that the traffic count numbers are more 
for the existing brewery that is nearby. He noted that their project should not add a significant amount 
of traffic. He added that they have been contributing to the maintenance of the road for the past 15 
years and are willing to do what it takes to maintain the rd.  
 
Mr. Stapleton opened the public hearing at 8:40 PM 
 
Darcy Baker lives at 600 Laurel Ln in Lovingston. She noted that the Kassam-Adams have bought a lot 
of the land around them. She explained that she is not representing the HOA but is representing several 
neighbors. She added that their neighborhood is a dead-end gravel road where everyone feels safe to 
walk their dogs. She explained that there is already a lot of traffic and when you pass another car you 
have to pull off to the side and scratch your car. She stated that 1-4 people would be ok but if they are 
allowing 12-25 people that would be a lot. She noted that the application seems vague and has a lot of 
potential expansion that concerns her. She questioned why all the parcels owned by the applicants were 
on the application. She asked about social media coverage and noted that another neighbor is 
concerned about the area being targeted for development. She noted that she is confused what is going 
on with the property and if the Common Grounds Collaborative is the same as the youth program 
and/or the artist community. She noted that a neighbor googled the collaborative and saw that it looked 
like a wonderful like a wonderful organization but that it is international  
  
Ms. Baker also presented the following: 
 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 
Mark Catron lives at 178 Starvale Ln in Shipman. He noted that he lives on the backside of this property 
and he is more here to represent the people that own the farm between he and the applicants. He noted 
that his concerns are for the road because it will need maintenance if traffic increases. He questioned 
how they would be able to fit enough parking spaces where the main house is. He noted that the area is 
now very rural and does not want a commercial property to be placed in the center. He noted he 
supports the project but wants the Planning Commission to investigate it further.  
 
Ms. Hjulstrom then read the following public comments from those that were not able to attend: 
 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 
 
Mr. Stapleton closed the public hearing at 8:54 PM.  
 
Ms. Allen noted that there is not a lot of detail about what the project is. She asked if guests would be 
living there for up to 6 weeks at a time. Mr. Meany confirmed this. Ms. Allen asked what they would be 
doing at the site. He explained that they would be living there with their families and working on their 
art. Ms. Allen asked how many buildings are currently on the property. Mr. Meany noted that 360 
Laurel Ln is the main house and a pool house with an additional existing building used for storage. He 
added that there is an abandoned barn below and a residence/small cottage and two sheds. He added 
that there is a small structure that they wish to use as a studio.  
 
Ms. Allen asked if it would be 1-4 people allowed at a time or 1-4 families and where they would be 
staying. Mr. Meany noted that it could be an artist and their family or it could be three individual 
artists. He explained that they would be staying at 73 Meadow Dr where there would be 3 bedrooms.  
 
Mr. Amante asked how many events were allowed by-right in A-1. Ms. Bishop noted that the limit is 
300 people for 12 events a year by-right but that the Planning Commission can impose additional 
conditions. She added that she recommended a max floor area of 10,000 sq ft, the applicants are 
currently at 4738 sq ft so that only gives them about 5000 sq ft for additional structures.  
 
Ms. Bishop recommended that they can make a condition with a maximum of 12 guests at a time as 
opposed to 4 artists.  
 
Mr. Amante noted that he wanted to see a definition of what activities constitute art from the County 
Attorney. Mr. Amante quoted from the application “Small group programming may be initiated or lead 
by Common Ground, or by external groups who share Common Ground goals and vision and apply to 
use the grounds and its facilities for indoor and outdoor activities.” He added that this is a group with 
an agenda and that he wants to know what constitutes art.  
 
Ms. Allen asked if the youth programs were only for day programs, she noted that this would increase 
the traffic more than just residencies. Mr. Amante asked if there are any artist communities currently in 
the County. Ms. Allen explained that they had an artist community try to come into the County 3-4 
years ago and that is when it was added to the Zoning Ordinance. She added that that artist community 
never ended up being developed in the county.  
 
Ms. Proulx noted that this SUP would apply to all the parcels and that they are currently individual. She 
is concerned that one parcel can be separated and retain the SUP. Ms. Bishop noted that the parcels 
without buildings are a part of their trail system and that the SUP would be for all the parcels together. 
She noted that she and the County Attorney had discussed having a condition that the applicants 
combine the parcels.   
 
Mr. Stapleton asked if the applicants would be able to come to the August 26th meeting. Mr. Meany 
noted that the applicants should be back in Virginia by then and should be able to come to the meeting.  
 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

Ms. Allen made a motion to move SUP #2020-02 Artist Community to the next Planning 
Commission meeting on August 26th, 2020. Mr. Reed seconded the motion.  
 
Yes: 

Mark Stapleton 

Phil Proulx  

Chuck Amante 

Ernie Reed 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

 
Mr. Reed asked if the County Attorney has come to any Planning Commission meetings. Ms. Bishop 
noted that he can come to the meeting at their request.  
 
 
Special Use Permit #2020-03 – Office – 8:05 pm  
 
Ms. Bishop presented the following information: 
 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

 
Harry Powell & Sarah Aldridge live at 4011 Stage Bridge Rd Shipman and Altamont Ln in Faber, 
respectively. He noted that the property is about 1.5 miles off Route 29. He noted that the building was 
used for manufacturing agriculture equipment from 1971 to the end of 2000 and after that it has been 
used periodically. He noted that at its peak it had 30 employees and 3-4 tractor trailers. He explained 
that now they would like to have the space for offices/engineering/light manufacturing for 4-5 people 
to be working there.  
 
Chair Stapleton opened the public hearing at 9:16 PM.  
 
Raymond Cook lives at 6894 Bear Creek Rd. He noted that he is the fire chief at Faber and this property 
is right behind the fire department. He noted that he has few objections to the project.  
 
Chair Stapleton closed the public hearing at 9:17 PM. 
 
Ms. Bishop added that she received three phone calls from people, all in support of the project.  
 
Mr. Amante made a motion to recommend approval of SUP 2020-03 Office. Ms. Proulx 
seconded the motion.  
 
Yes: 

Mark Stapleton 

Phil Proulx  

Chuck Amante 

Ernie Reed 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

 
 

 

Ernie noted that this was his first meeting with the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission 
welcomed him.  

 

Adjournment: 

Ms. Allen made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:20 pm. Mr. Amante seconded the 
motion. The motion was passed with a vote of 5-0. 

Yes: 

Mark Stapleton 

Phil Proulx  

Chuck Amante 



Draft: 7/22/2020 

 

Ernie Reed 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Emily Hjulstrom 

Secretary, Planning & Zoning 



Nelson County  
Planning Commission 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Dylan M. Bishop, Director of Planning & Zoning DMB 

Date: August 26, 2020 

Re: Rezoning #2020-01 – R-1 to A-1 – Dan & Terri Tatarka – 279 Avon Road, Afton 

BACKGROUND: This is a request to rezone property from Residential, R-1 to Agricultural, A-1 
to allow a farm brewery use. 

Public Hearings Scheduled: P/C – July 22, 2020 and August 26, 2020; Board – TBD 

Location / Election District: 279 Avon Road / North District 

Tax Map Number(s) / Total acreage:  6-A-45 / 2.29 acres +/- total 

Applicant Contact Information: Dan & Terri Tatarka, 279 Avon Road, Afton, VA 22920, 434-270-
0404 

Comments: Currently the property is home to Wild Man Dan Bed and Breakfast, with a small-
scale brewery operation that is only open to guests of the BNB, as well as a small-scale 
wholesale bakery operation.  Additional meeting space above the current structure is currently 
being constructed to accommodate guests of the BNB, and potentially utilized for the farm 
brewery operation.  The applicants are proposing the rezoning from R-1 to A-1 to allow the 
conversion of the current brewery operation to a farm brewery use that is open to the public. 
According to the applicants, approximately an acre of this property is used for agricultural crop 
production.  Although this property is adjoined by R-1 zoning, the A-1 zoning district is also 
consistent with the zoning on other parcels in the vicinity. 

A public hearing was held at the Planning Commission meeting on July 22. After this hearing, 
additional and revised proffers were submitted by the applicants for review. Ordinance requires 
that a second public hearing be held before the Planning Commission, should the original 
submitted proffers be revised after the first public hearing.  

DISCUSSION: 

Land Use / Floodplain:  This area is residential and agricultural in nature. Zoning in the vicinity is 
R-1 and A-1, with one parcel zoned B-1.  There are no 100-year floodplains on this property.   



2 

Access / Traffic / Parking: Property is accessed from Avon Road between Rockfish Valley 
Highway (Route 151) and Tanbark Drive. According to a letter provided by VDOT, the use will 
require a VDOT commercial entrance. The applicants are currently working towards providing 
the requested analysis for further review. 

Utilities: The property is currently served by private well and septic. Comments provided by the 
Health Department indicate that the previous owners had a repair drainfield installed in the area 
denoted “Additional Parking” on the plat.  

Proffers / Conditions: Proffers submitted by the applicant are attached with this report.    

The Planning Commission may accept and recommend, and the Board of Supervisors may 
accept or impose, reasonable conditions upon the approval of the rezoning request. The criteria 
for conditions associated with rezoning are below: 

(a) The rezoning itself must give rise to the need for conditions. 
(b) All conditions shall have a reasonable relation to the rezoning. 
(c) No condition shall include a cash contribution to the County. 
(d) No condition shall include a mandatory dedication of real or personal property for 
open space, parks, schools, fire stations or other public facilities except those provided 
for by law. 
(e) No condition shall include payment for or construction of off-site improvements except 
those otherwise provided for by law. 
(f) All conditions shall relate to the physical development or physical operation of the 
property. 
(g) All conditions shall be in conformity with the County's comprehensive plan. 
(h) No condition shall be used for the purpose of discrimination in housing. 

 
Comprehensive Plan: This property is located in an area designated rural residential in the 
Comprehensive Plan, “which would allow low density residential and compatible non residential 
uses in rural areas where agriculture is not the predominant use. Clustering of residents further 
protects rural areas.” 

RECOMMENDATION: The approval of requests should be based on one or more of the 
following factors:  

1. Good Zoning Practice 
2. Public Necessity 
3. General Welfare 
4. Convenience 

Attachments: 
Application 
Narrative 
Proffers 
Plat / Site Plan 
Zoning Map 
Home Occupation Permits 
Comments 



Rezoning 2020-01

16



300 6/22/2020



Draft Proffers for Proposed Rezoning 2020-01 – Dan & Terri Tatarka – 279 Avon Road – R-1 to A-1 

 

Proffered Uses in A-1 (only these uses permitted by-right): 

4-1-1 Single-family detached dwellings 

4-1-5 Agriculture (livestock limited to 10 chickens and 3 goats) 

4-1-6 Fire departments and rescue squad facilities 

4-1-8 Home occupations, class A and class B 

4-1-10 Off-street parking as required by this ordinance 

4-1-11 Public utilities… etc. 

4-1-12 Accessory uses 

4-1-13 through 4-1-17 all deal with by-right signage 

4-1-19 Yard sale 

4-1-25 Farm winery 

4-1-27 Temporary placement and occupancy of a travel trailer not to exceed ten (10) consecutive days 

4-1-29 Farm brewery, limited 

4-1-30 Bed and breakfast, class A 

4-1-31 Bed and breakfast, class B 

4-1-32 Vacation house  

4-1-33 Agritourism activity 

4-1-34 Social temporary event, provided that there are no more than 12 such events in a calendar year 
and that the event complies with the county noise ordinance 

4-1-a Uses permitted by Special Use Permit only  

 

Additional Proffers: 

For farm brewery operation, 7 barrels shall be the maximum system size, and shall be contained to 
existing structures on the property 

As indicated above, livestock shall be limited to 10 chickens and 3 goats 





“WildManDan Beercentric Bed & Breakfast” is one of the best B&B’s that we have been 
to.  Dan and Terri Tatarka made us feel at home the first time we stayed there about 5 
years ago.  They had not been open very long at that time.  We have stayed there a 
number of times since then.  We feel like and are treated like family every time we visit.  
Both Dan and Terri are actively involved during everyone’s stay at their B&B.  They 
always direct their guests to businesses and entertainment that is happening in the local 
area.  This provides significant support and revenue to the local economy. 

Their contributions to the community is undeniable through the guests that stay at their 
B&B, as well as their support to the local farms, and various businesses in the local 
area with the purchase of products used to run their B&B and brewery.  Not to mention 
the taxes, et cetera, paid to the county on an annual basis to simply run their 
businesses. 

During our first several visits to their B&B, Dan was still working in fiber optics 
manufacturing with a dream of retiring to pursue his passion of creating a fine tasting 
beer that people could enjoy while visiting the B&B and his small brewery.  Dan and 
Terri purchased the property with two combined dreams.  Terri loves to create farm to 
table meals for her guests staying at the B&B.  She enjoys explaining to her guests 
where she acquires the fresh ingredients within the local community, which she uses to 
create the meals.  Dan loves to create unique beers in his small brewery which people 
staying at the B&B can enjoy during their stay.  Dan only brews 10 gallons at a time, 
with no desire to significantly increase production.   

In summary, it would be wrong and a shame to deny the zoning change needed 
preventing Dan and Terri from pursuing their dreams since they provide significant, 
wholesome contributions to the local community.  Denial of their zoning request is 
simply a denial of a small business to succeed in your county which is, in our opinion, 
disgraceful at the very least. 

Carrie & Don Harper



WildManDan Agricultural designation request. May 27, 2020 

Good morning, 

Thank you for your email. We have answered your questions and provided information to the best of our ability.  We 

thank you and the board for rezoning consideration and ask that you please keep us informed and allow us to address 

concerns. 

- The current brewery operation is not open to the public - are your plans to open a farm brewery with the

agricultural zoning designation? If so, describe the process.

o Yes, we would like to open a farm brewery

o We are currently building out the second floor of our brew barn for bnb meeting space, and thought

that it might serve a multipurpose if we were open for limited hours.

o We have areas for parking including a field on the property and have contacted with the church (Rodes

United Methodist) for possible parking across the street.  We have worked with them previously on

small gathering events that the BNB hosted.

o We have discussed the process with ABC and once zoning is approved, we will resubmit for limited

brewery license as directed by the ABC.

o Our planned hours would be Mon, Thur, Fri 3-7pm, Sat-Sun Noon-7pm

- Can you describe the current and/or proposed agricultural operation(s) on the property?

o Currently, Hops, wheat, apples, blackberries, blueberries. strawberries, rhubarb, vegetables, spices, and

herbs. Currently over an acre.

- If you are planning any additions or improvements, please describe those as well.

o We are currently building additional meeting space which could be utilized for brewery guests.

- A description of the current uses (BNB, brewery, bakery, etc) and how they function would also be helpful.

Capacity, hours, parking, etc.

o BNB: 5 rooms (10 people), open weekends only (Friday-Monday)

o Brewery: Distribution sales and private events-1/2-barrel brew system

o Bakery: A new venture for wholesale, small scale-we applied for this right when we were closed due to

Covid19. We just recently were notified that we were approved. We plan the bakery operation

(Tuesday-Wed-Thurs only). This will not affect traffic to the property.

o Parking: Currently we have a gravel/ blacktop area that is 95 x 40ft and another grassy area 123 x 20 ft.

We have a large lower field that can be converted for additional parking.

o Comment: Due to the current Covid-19 environment we have lost revenue at the B&B and brewery. We

have been following all state requests and guidelines and are struggling to remain afloat without

revenue. Changing to a farm brewery and open to the public limited hours allows us a small revenue

stream that may support the much slower to recover BNB. It allows us to use agricultural products from

our property in our product. It allows us some flexibility in advertising. It provides tax incentives and

access to additional funding options.

o This property has a long history of community and public access from feed and seed store, market,

business entities, and school.  Agricultural properties are next door and across the street.

o We’ve been a community member for 5 years and feel we bring real value to the county.

- The plat for the property is attached

- Let us know when and how to submit the public hearing fee

Best Regards, 

Dan Tatarka  

Tatarka Enterprises Inc. 

279 Avon Rd. 

Afton, VA 22920 





Virginia Geographic Information Network (VGIN)

July 15, 2020
0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.04 0.090.02 km

1:2,257



Virginia Geographic Information Network (VGIN)

July 15, 2020
0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.15 0.30.07 km

1:9,028





















Nelson County  
Planning Commission 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Dylan M. Bishop, Director of Planning & Zoning DMB 

Date: August 26, 2020 

Re: SUP #2020-04 – Extended Stay Campground – 6787 Taylor Creek Rd. 

BACKGROUND: This is a request for a special use permit to allow extended stay camping for 
one site on property zoned A-1 Agricultural.  

Public Hearings Scheduled: P/C – August 26, 2020; Board – September 8, 2020 (tentative) 

Location / Election District: 6787 Taylor Creek Road / North District 

Tax Map Number(s) / Total acreage: 13-A-77 / 16.4 acre parcel 

Applicant Contact Information: Jacqueline M. Whalen, 7056 Taylor Creek Road, Afton, VA 
22920, 434-882-2456 

Comments: This property is zoned A-1 Agricultural, and currently contains one dwelling, 
accessory structures, and horses. According to the applicant, there was a second dwelling on 
the site that burned down in 2008. The applicant is requesting to utilize this site for the purpose 
of renting it out to transient lodgers for up to 6 months at a time. These lodgers would provide 
their own travel trailer and connect to existing utilities. 

DISCUSSION: 

Land Use / Floodplain:  This area is agricultural and residential in nature.  There are no flood 
plains on the property.   

Access and Traffic: The property is accessed by a private entrance from Taylor Creek Road. 
Comments from VDOT (if any) will be provided at the meeting. 

Utilities: The property is currently served by private water and septic systems.  

Conditions: The Planning Commission may recommend, and the Board of Supervisors may 
impose, reasonable conditions upon the approval of the special use permit. Staff recommends 
the condition of limiting the extended stay campground to one site. 



2 

Comprehensive Plan: This property is in an area designated as Rural and Farming on the 
current Future Land Use Plan. 

RECOMMENDATION: The approval of special use permits should be based on the following 
factors:  

1. The use shall not tend to change the character and established pattern of development 
of the area or community in which it proposed to locate.  
 

2. The use shall be in harmony with the uses permitted by right in the zoning district and 
shall not affect adversely the use of neighboring property.  
 

3. The proposed use shall be adequately served by essential public or private water and 
sewer facilities.  
 

4. The proposed use shall not result in the destruction, loss or damage or any feature 
determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historical importance 
 

Should Planning Commission recommend approval of this request staff recommends the 
following condition: 

1. Extended stay campground is limited to one existing site. 

 

Attachments: 
Application 
Plat 
Comments 

















Nelson County  
Planning Commission 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Dylan M. Bishop, Director of Planning & Zoning DMB 

Date: August 26, 2020 

Re: SUP #2020-05 – Retail Store in M-1 District – 60 Davis Creek Lane 

BACKGROUND: This is a request for a special use permit to allow a retail store use on 
property zoned M-1 Industrial.  

Public Hearings Scheduled: P/C – August 26, 2020; Board – September 8, 2020 (tentative) 

Location / Election District: 60 Davis Creek Lane / East District 

Tax Map Number(s) / Total acreage: 45-A-33 / 0.94 +/- acre parcel 

Applicant Contact Information: Kerry W. Thornton, 4295 Tye River Road, Amherst, VA 24521, 
434-987-7910 

Comments: This property is zoned M-1 Industrial, and contains an existing structure that is over 
6,000 square feet. The applicant is requesting to utilize approximately 2,700 square feet of this 
structure for retail sales of items that are not manufactured on site. 

DISCUSSION: 

Land Use / Floodplain:  This area is agricultural and residential in nature.  There are no flood 
plains on the property.   

Access and Traffic: The property is accessed by an entrance from Davis Creek Lane. 
Comments from VDOT will be provided at the meeting. 

Utilities: The property is currently served by existing utilities.  

Conditions: The Planning Commission may recommend, and the Board of Supervisors may 
impose, reasonable conditions upon the approval of the special use permit.  

Comprehensive Plan: This property is in an area designated as Rural and Farming on the 
current Future Land Use Plan. 



2 

RECOMMENDATION: The approval of special use permits should be based on the following 
factors:  

1. The use shall not tend to change the character and established pattern of development 
of the area or community in which it proposed to locate.  
 

2. The use shall be in harmony with the uses permitted by right in the zoning district and 
shall not affect adversely the use of neighboring property.  
 

3. The proposed use shall be adequately served by essential public or private water and 
sewer facilities.  
 

4. The proposed use shall not result in the destruction, loss or damage or any feature 
determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historical importance 
 

Should Planning Commission recommend approval of this request staff recommends the 
following condition: 

1. The retail use shall be limited to the approximately 2,700 square feet area as indicated 
on the submitted drawing. 

Attachments: 
Application 
Drawing 
Zoning 
Google Map Image 









Virginia Geographic Information Network (VGIN)

August 14, 2020
0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.15 0.30.07 km

1:9,028




	2020-01 Rezoning Staff Report.pdf
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	2020-04 SUP Staff Report.pdf
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	2020-05 SUP Staff Report.pdf
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:




